City of PCB City Hall
" 17007 PCB
Panama City Beach Parkway
PCB, FL. 32413
P: (850) 233-5100
F: (850) 233-5108

CITY OF PANAMA CITY BEACH WD HLLAoY
PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES
July 9, 2025
MINUTES TO THE REGULAR MEETING

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Wakstein at 1:00 p.m. and Ms. Deese was
asked to call the roll. Members present were Mr. Painter, Mr. Thomas, Mr. Coleman,

Mr. Morehouse, Mr. Wittstruck, Mr. Bishop, and Chairman Wakstein. Mr. Thomas led the
Pledge of Allegiance.

ITEM NO. 3 Approval of May 14, 2025, Planning Board Meeting Minutes

Chairman Wakstein asked if there were any comments or corrections to the meeting
minutes. Mr. Coleman made a motion to approve. It was seconded by Mr. Wittstruck.
Ms. Deese called the roll.

Mr. Coleman Yes Mr. Thomas Yes Mr. Painter Yes
Mr. Morehouse Yes Mr. Bishop Yes Mr. Wittstruck Yes
Chairman Wakstein Yes

ITEM NO. 4 Public Comments — Non-Agenda Items

There were no public comments.

ITEM NO. 5 Ready Mix USA/ Cemex is requesting approval for a Large
Conditional Use to operate as a heavy industrial use. The
proposed development is approximately 3.19 acres, and the
property is located at 17803 Ashley Drive (Parcel: 38320-005-105).

Chairman Wakstein introduced the item and read aloud the proceedings for a quasi-
judicial hearing. All participants identified as affected parties were sworn in for testimony.
The application and staff report were added to the record. Ms. Chester acknowledged that
all requirements of the application notices were satisfied. Ms. Deese was asked to call
Jennings Act.

Mr. Coleman had nothing to disclose. Mr. Thomas spoke with legal counsel.
Mr. Painter had nothing to disclose. Mr. Morehouse visited the property.
Mr. Bishop had nothing to disclose. Mr. Wittstruck visited the property.
Chairman Wakstein had nothing to disclose.

Robert Carroll, McNeil and Carroll Engineering, Inc. and acting agent for the applicant
presented the application. There was a community meeting and no attendees. There are
currently three (3) concrete plants in the vicinity, this will be the fourth. He described the
proposed location, the wash down area, dust control mechanisms, and it will operate by
electric means. He displayed the property survey and photos of samples of similar plants.
He stated there will be a 20’ vegetative and fenced buffer from the residential area.

Mr. Coleman said there will probably be overspray and asked how the water will be
filtered from contaminants that will be in the concrete.

Mr. Carroll responded that the water will be pretty clear after being sent through the
clarifier. The process will work similar to a carwash with reused water.

Page 1 of 3
Minutes of the Planning Board
July 9, 2025



Mr. Leonard responded to Mr. Wittstruck that there had not been any complaints
received about the concrete plants that currently operate in the commerce park.

Ms. Chester presented the staff report. She suggested that upon development order
review the plant should be more to the east since it will be within 204’ of residential. She
asked if there are any noise complaints that staff is able to bring back to the Planning
Board for a second look. She noted when writing the staff report she was not aware that
the proposed plant will be run on electric.

Mr. Morehouse asked if impact fees were collected in the commerce park when it was
developed. He voiced concern about large trucks causing wear on the roads.

Mr. Leonard responded that a proportionate share is calculated for use and size. It is
collected individually for major collector and arterial roads. The roads within the commerce
park are not subject to proportionate share, if the trips hit Panama City Beach Parkway
and Highway 79 they would. The city maintenance program grades roads ‘A’ through ‘F’,
as roads approach end of life collection of fees can begin.

Mr. Leonard clarified for Mr. Coleman that the access should be on an arterial or collector
street for the commerce park itself not the individual parcel.

Chairman Wakstein called for adversely affected parties, public comment, and rebuttal at
this time, there were none. He asked Mr. Carroll if it is possible to load the batch tower
toward the east side of the property.

Mr. Carroll stated the east side of the property will be stormwater, but they will move as
far east as possible. The plant will be run on electric and will be quieter than older plants.

Chairman Wakstein called for closing arguments at this time, there were none. He
opened Board deliberation.

Mr. Coleman saw no issue with the request and He noted the equipment will be run by
electric means. Any noise will be from trucks which are currently running with the three
operational concrete plants and there have been no complaints.

Mr. Painter made a motion to recommend approval of the large conditional use request as
presented. It was seconded by Mr. Coleman.

Mr. Coleman Yes Mr. Thomas  Yes Mr. Painter Yes

Mr. Morehouse Yes Mr. Bishop Yes Mr. Wittstruck Yes

Chairman Wakstein  Yes

The motion to approve passed with a vote of (7-0).

ITEM NO. 6 Concurrency Report

Ms. Chester presented the item and stated the Concurrency Report is a yearly update of
capital services and facilities.

Mr. Coleman inquired about the frequency of updates for stormwater.

Mr. Leonard responded there is a master stormwater plan that is updated in a model as
there are new developments and projects. Periodically Public Works does a major update
to the master stormwater plan from the model.

Chairman Wakstein inquired how the traffic counts are calculated.

Mr. Leonard stated that they are actual counts from FDOT (Florida Department of

Transportation) for major roads. There are factors to average based on what is surrounded
for minor roads.

Page 2 of 3
Minutes of the Planning Board

July 9, 2025



Chairman Wakstein Closed the item

ITEM NO. 7 Code Enforcement Update

Mr. Leonard let the Board know that Code Enforcement Manager was out and the report
would be for their information and there would be no presentation. He asked if there were
any questions, there were none.

The meeting adjourned at 1:21 p.m.

3TN T
DATED this, ' ~ day of /4“%7‘/ el , 2025.
i~ N

{,/: "~/ Z 7 (e ~")
JosfVakstein, Chairrhan
/

v/

ATTEST:

elissa Deese, Secretary

Page 3 of 3
Minutes of the Planning Board
July 9, 2025



